
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The September 2020 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be 

held will be held on Thursday September 17 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 E. 
Church St., Elmira, NY 14901. The meeting will be available online. The agenda 
for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform Ms. Dworkin (607-398-2021), 
Mrs. Mellott (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Introduction of Members 
4.  Approval of minutes (document #2020-49)  
5.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2020-50)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2020-51)  
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report (Dworkin) 
8.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the personnel actions as submitted. 

9.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Dworkin)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-52) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-53)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-54) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Appenzellar)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee  
10. Executive Session 
11.  Old business     
12.  New business 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the August 20, 2020 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board 
of Trustees. Document #2020-49) 
  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Rachel Dworkin. Present via Zoom 
were Pat Silvernail, Martha Smith, Crystal Gullo-Buzzetti, Kevin Hansen, Phyllis Rogan, 
Bonnie Chollet, Jack Schamel, Karl Schewesinger, Pam Larnard, Penny Appenzellar, Ann 
Hayes, Lee Saginario, and Mark Padgett. Excused: Jessica Roberts. Also present were Ron 
Shaw and Holly Melott on behalf of the Library District’s Administration.   
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the July 2020 meeting (Document #2020-43) were presented for 
board review. Ms. Hayes moved that the June Board minutes be approved as amended, 
seconded by Ms. Larnard to accept the minutes as amended. VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
Financial Report. The July 31, 2020 Financial Report (Document #2020-44) was presented 
for board review.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes, to approve the June 
 Financial Report as distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2020-33) Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Silvernail, that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 08/20/20 for the 
General Fund - $72,748.80. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Ms. Dworkin moved that 
Mr. Shaw be given authority to sign checks, in lieu of the board not meeting in person due to 
the Covid pandemic, second by Ms. Chollet. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Correspondence.  Mr. Shaw shared correspondence from the community thanking the 
library for re-opening, for making face shields, and recognition for exemplary service 
provided by Librarian, Maggie Young.    
 
President’s Report.  Ms. Dworkin continues to closely monitor the pandemic situation.  
She appreciates the boards support and flexibility during this challenging time.  She has 
received multiple expressions of concern over the recent Steele Library weeding project.   
 
Director’s Report.  Mr. Shaw reported on the following: 

 He will be meeting with department heads the week of 8/24 to solidify extended re-
opening plans.  Beginning the week of 9/14, both floors of Steele will be open 9 a.m. 
to 8 p.m., each of the branches will have additional open hours as well.  Saturday 
hours will resume on 10/3.  Curbside services may be eliminated. 

 Deb Brimmer, IT Supervisor has submitted the paperwork to STLS for a matching 
grant, to be used for technology, monies will be received in 2021. 

 He will be meeting with Bob Butcher on 8/24.  The breakroom renovations are ready 
to go out for bid. 

 Due to the current pandemic situation, it was difficult to obtain parts for the boiler at 
Steele.  Completion is slated for early September. 

 An application has been submitted for a construction grant through STLS for a total 
of $58,000.  The estimated cost of repaving the parking lot at Steele is $116,000.   

 He has requested an extension from the NY Department of Labor, allowing him to 
conduct the workplace violence training on Friday, November 6 during the annual 
continuing education day. 

 



 
 
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Rogan moved that Personnel Actions are approved as 
submitted, seconded by Mr. Hansen. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    
 

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2020-46) 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board, approved as amended. (Document #2020-47) 
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2020-48) 
 
Personnel Committee.    
 
Election & Continuity Committee.  The committee is continuing to prepare for the 
election of 2020.  As in past years, the trustee election will be conducted on Election Day 
with two polling places (Steele Memorial Library and Horseheads Free Library).  
 
There are 7 districts up for election this year.  Currently the status of these districts are: 
District 1 – Pat Silvernail – running 
District 5 – Bonnie Chollet – running 
District 6 – Jack Schamel – running 
Disctrict 8 – Penny Appenzellar – appointed last year, running for remainder of term 
District 10 – Phyllis Rogan – running 
District 13 – Mark Padgett – appointed this year, running for remainder of term 
District 14- Martha Smith – running 
 
If there are any errors or changes, please let the committee know as soon as possible.  
Identifying new trustee candidates is a difficult and time consuming task. 
 
Betsy Gorman is up for re-appointment this year as the STLS representative. 
 
Nominating petitions are required for a candidate to appear on the ballot, but that only 18 
signatures will be needed per the Governor’s Executive Order 202.51. 
 
Absentee ballots will be handled the same as in previous years.  Sue Cook is working with 
the Board of Elections to determine if absentee ballots can be placed at the polling places on 
Election Day. 
 
Advocacy Committee.  
 
Old Business.    
 
 
 
 
 
 



New Business.   Ms. Appenzellar moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel, that Article VII 
Section 5, be amended as follows: 

ARTICLE VII   Section 5 
 
Section 5.  Unless under Executive Order (EO), meetings of the Chemung County Library 
District must adhere to the NYS Open Meetings Law.  If an EO has superseded the ability to 
abide by the Open Meetings Law, meetings of the CCLD Board and/or its committees may 
be held remotely, via internet, as long as the following are observed: 
 
(1)  All parties must be able to hear everyone participating in the meeting. 
 
(2)  If voting takes place the chair must be able to verify each participant's vote. If a Board 
Member is participating by phone (for audio purposes) the President of the Board must ask 
them by name what his/her vote is. 
 
(3)  The public notice of each meeting shall contain the password for access to the meeting 
platform. 
 
(4)  The meeting shall be recorded and the recording shall be made available to the public. 
 
(5)  Members of the public who participate in the remote access meeting shall have the right 
to address the Board under the agenda Period for Public Expression 
 

VOTE:  Ms. Dworkin called for a roll call:  Opposed:  Ms. Rogan, Ms. Gullo-Buzzetti, 
Mr. Schewesinger, and Ms. Larnard.  In favor:  Ms. Saginario, Ms. Appenzellar, Mr. 
Hansen, Mr. Schamel, Ms. Chollet, Ms. Hayes, Ms. Silvernail, Ms. Smith, Ms. 
Dworkin, and Mr. Padgett. 

Ms. Dworkin made a motion that the board go into executive session, second by Mr. 
Schamel VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Mr. Shaw & Ms. Melott were dismissed.   
 
Mr. Schamel moved that the executive session end, seconded by Ms. Chollet.  VOTE:  
Unanimously Approved.   
 
Ms. Dworkin moved that Ms. Melott be given a 2% increase in salary, retroactive to 
her anniversary, seconded by Ms. Hayes.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   

Mr. Schamel moved, second by Ms. Chollet, to adjourn.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, September 17, 2020 at 
6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library and online via Zoom. 
 
 









Document #2020-52 
 
Report of the September 2, 2020 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting via Zoom from the Executive Committee 
were Rachel Dworkin, Martha Smith, Phyllis Rogan, and Jack Schamel. Holly Melott and Ronald Shaw, 
CCLD management were also present. Other board members in attendance were Karl Schwesinger, Kevin 
Hanse, Lee Saginario, Penny Appenzellar, and Ann Hayes. 
 
Ms. Dworkin called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 9/2/20 for the General Fund - 
$33,869.86, Grant Fund - $2521.15. Mr. Schamel moved, second by Ms. Smith to approve payment of 
the bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Ms. Dworkin moved, second 
by Ms. Hayes, that Mr. Shaw be given authority to sign checks, in lieu of the board not meeting 
in person due to the corona pandemic  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Director Ron Shaw gave the following reports: 

 Beginning September 14th, all branches will be open for open browsing in 30 minute increments.   
 The Bookmobile is scheduled to resume service on September 21st, the route will be posted on the 

website 
 Bookmobile repairs will begin soon 
 Currently no in-house events are scheduled, multiple online programs continue.  Curbside will be 

available by request only 
 The annual STLS Board Foundation meeting will be held September 10th at 5 p.m., via Zoom 
 Board of Trustee elections will be able to be held at Steele, Mr. Shaw will evaluate the space at 

Horsehead, anticipating that they can be held there as well 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:15 pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, October 7, 2020 at 6pm via Zoom. 
 
 



Document #2020-53 
 
Report of the September 9, 2020 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting in person or via Zoom were CCLD board member Mr. Jack Schamel, Ms. 
Ann Hayes, Ms. Rachel Dworkin, and Ms. Jessica Roberts. Also in attendance Holly Melott and 
Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 8:45 a.m. 
 
Ms. Melott presented the August 31, 2020 Financial Report to the Committee. The report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bill List dated September 17, 2020 for the General Fund - $30,040.60, 
for the Grant Fund - $537.02. The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board 
for its consideration.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, October 14, 2020 via Zoom or in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library. 
   
 
 



Document #2020-54 
 
 
Report of the September 2, 2020 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present via Zoom were Mr. Karl Schwesinger, Ms. Rachel 
Dworkin, Ms. Ann Hayes, Ms. Martha Smith, and Ms. Lee Saginario.  Also attending were Holly 
Melott and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

 The boiler project at Steele is nearing completion 
 STLS has approved $58,000 for the paving of the parking lot at Steele, the decision will 

now move on to the Division of Library Development 
 Steele breakroom project is out for bid 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:40pm.  

The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
October 7, 2020 at 5:30pm via Zoom. 

 
 


	Agenda 2020-09
	Document 2020-49
	Document 2020-50
	Document 2020-51
	Document 2020-52
	Document 2020-53
	Document 2020-54

